BIDDLESDEN ABBEY AND ITS LANDS.
Br Bev. H. Rooxnoert,
fContinmed from Fol. T, poge BY_)

XII. In Tuarweston, County Bucks, Ralph de Stovil,
whote family had cbtained the Manor by grant from
Richazd the First alter the forfciture of the fgelgeres, ita
first possessors aftew the Conquest, pronted Biddiesden
Abbey four virgates, c]:mrgea.'l:ﬁe with a guit-rent of eix-
pence per apnum.  Charters confirmatory of these and
other landa in this parish were obtained on payment of
fines of various amounts, from Matilda de Audley,
deseribing herself aa “ the Rose of Turweston,™ her two
daughters, Sibelln and Agneca, and their respective hua-
bands, John de Blake, and Joho de Pathe,

Some years later lands were exchanpged at Turweston
between the Abbey and Humphrey de Stavil, the younger,
nephew of Ralph, aod eubsequently disputes arose he-
tween them concerning rights of road, ditches, boundaries,
and especially a dunghill and pig-stve of De Stavil's,
which etood in a position peenliarly offencive to one aof
the Biddlesdrn tenants ; a0 that in 12453 arhitrators were
appointed, and they having adjusted the minor articles of
tomplaiut, fixed boundary atonee upon the disputed lands,
and made further order *f that the dungvhiﬁ ehould he
“ placed immediately under the window of the house to
1 which the pig-stye belongs, and that the door of the pig-
“ stye should open opposite the door of the house, snd that
' a fence should be made between the dung-hill end the
* house belonging to Biddlesdvn, and that ne man should
* presume to disturl this settloment under pain of ex-
“ gommunication.”

Yet this agreement did not secure undisturbed posses-
sion of their lands to the Monka ; in 1274 they were com-
pelled to pay n fine of twenty shillings to Florence de
Stovil, and in 1R85 they were sued in the King's Court

3



3 RECOROS OF RUCKINGILAMAHIRE.

at Wycombe by Adam Sweet, descendant from Matilda
de Audley, for restitution of the londs in Turweston that
had been confirmed by her, and could only retain them .
on payment of two marks, In 1330 the whale revenuves
of 5‘1& Abbey in thia parish had suck to 1L 125 64,
arnually,

KIHJ.’ InCodesford, now Cottisford, County Oxon, Roger
Albus pranted seven acres of land, and grasa in his pas-
tures and commons for siz ecare sheep,* a benefaction, con-
firmed bﬁ charter from Matilda, widow of Wydone de
Codesford, upan a fine of three shillinge and two hashels
of graim. In 1218 William de Bac leased to this Abbey,
for a term of twenty years, all his houses in Codesfurd,
with & dove cote, fish-pond, and eother premises, for a fine
of sixty shillings and en anmual rent™of three; sod by &
second lease he granted for the same length of time and 2t a
yearly rent of half & mark, & [arm-vard snd rights of pas-
turage in Codesford for twelve score sheep, and covenanted
to provide the stalls with straw for litter, and to thatch the
ghoop-fold es often as was necessary.t -

Willia ecites the Fine rolls of 1249, as proving that
in that year Biddlesden held a messuage and lands io
Codesford, but it is probable that these lands became sub-
sequently alienated from the Abbey, ss ne mention of
them ocrurs in the Chartulary, which appears to have
been compiled at the close of the 15th or early in the 16th
century.

XIV. Boycote, near Stowe, County Oxen, King Hoenry
I. founding an Abbey of Black Canones at Cirencester,
4. 7. 1117, endowed 1t with lande in this parish, confis-
cated from the sccular priest Bembald, Their estatcs
here, confirmed by Charter from [Iugh de Kennea, were
held [or upwards of & century by these Monks, who be-
tween 1230-1238 lcased them to William e Stratford for
the term of his life, at an anvual reot of one hundred
ehillings, and shortly after sold them to Biddlesden, sub-
ject however to the sbove-named lease.

The extent of this Manor, deseribed in the Circncester
Charter, as Borcolem, ef wpam hidam terre in bosoo ef
plano cum wno molondine is ascertained from a survey,
made about the time of the sale to Biddlesden, entitled
Tenentes ad Bereotam, which recites the names of all the

& Cart, Ant, B4 F, 59, T Cwrt. Apt. 84 H, 3and 4,
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tenants, fiftren in number, and the quantity of land in
their several heldiogs, and has the fellowing :—
“ Memorandum.

* 1. That Hichard the Miller owses fealty to the King
' for one virgate of land, and pays yearly one mark for
“ the rent of the mill.

"2, That ir Boieote field theee are twenty acres, amd
“ fifteen acres, and half an acre in demesnc, and thirty
* acres and a half were with the c¢roft of Walter de
“ Bannebury.

** 3. That in Boicote ficld there are twenty-aix acres, and
' gight acres, and half an mere in villenage.

* 4, That the virgute in demespe contains twenty-
" three acres. -

“ 5. That the v{rlqs.tc in villenage contaios twenty-
" two acres, and two large acres ("aeras majores ).

“To Demesne there are six and a half virgates.

# In ¥Yillenage there are five and a balf virgates *

As oo lessts or annual agreements for these lands have
been met with, it i3 likely that they were culiivated b
the Monks themaclves and their labourers, but in 1526,
when the fortunes of the Monastic ordere began te be in
peril, Abbot Richard gave a leane of Hoyeott for 4% years
to Arnes Abbice, widew of Ludovic Abbice, saving how-
ever to his Abbey the DBoicote woods, and all the trees,
chiefly ash and elm, growing npon the estatet Ten
years later the timber thus reacrved, excepting Boicote
wonds, was sold to Willlam Risly of Chytwoode, for "a
certain gomme of money agreede and payde" who hed
license of the Abbey to cut it down and carry it away. }

XYV¥. In Charwelton, County Northampton, William de
Chendult conveyed ta Biddleeden two cardeates, describod
ag all the land within his Lordehip, and three virgates
and a half within the Vill, a grant eonfrmed by Richard
the First; and by subsequent Charter De Chenduit added
hies capital mespuage in Charwelton with its milla, quar-
rirs, roads, pasturages, end other appurtenances tu his
former benefactions, and released the Monks from a pay-
ment of two besants annually with which his frst grant
kad been made chargeable,

But within & short time, probably after William's death,

* 1arl: MS33. 4714 fol. 304 t Cwrt. Aot, 84. F. 20,
1 Carr, Ant, B4, F. 25,
2r
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hin son Ralph posseased himself of a portion of these lande,
for by suit in the King's Court 1o whirh the Abbot of
Biddlesden was a party, he was compelled to restore
lands in Charwelton to Tucie de Cekfield, and she
about the year 1203, with her son Adam, confirmed to
Biddlesden, all the lands within her fec of Charwelion,
“to wit, all that the Monks formerly held, and all that
* ghe had revovered from Ralph de Chenduil” om pay-
ment of half a Knight's service to the ¥ee of Morton, and
to herself and heirs twelve marks yearly. This rent-
charge, descending toc her grandeon, Adam de Cokield,
was remitted by him 1292, and in exchange the Mooks
of Dddlcaden released him from an anuual payment of
ten pounds, due to them from his Magor of Favtewelle, in
the Divrese of Norwich, and which they had purchascd
two yeame previously lrom the Abbot of Delle Becer by a
contribution of one hundred pounde sterling for the pe-
building of his Abbey*

The %iddleaden estates In Charwelton had been aleo
charged #ith an annual payment of nine shillings to the
Monastery of Ashby, which Adam, Trior of that house
remitted.  Also with dues to the Prioz"iy ol Warde, touch-
ing which an agresment was concluded in 1250, which
assigned to Biddlesden all the emeluments in Charwelton
of ﬁl& Priory of Warde, end to Warde all the rig’hts
claimed by Biddleeden from lands belonging to the Priozy
in the vill of Bifield,

Another virgate in Charwelton was held by Biddlesden
of the Fee of Berkhamstede, It had been given by Simon
Herewarde, charged with a quit-rent of half & pound of

-:pimr, and one pound of cummin, which waa released
Ey Thomas de Bronton, Lord of the Maner, fur a fine of
6s, Bd. To 1276 Edmund, Earl of Cornwall, Lord of the
Fee of Berkhamatede, sonfirmed the Monks in their poa-
sesaion of this virgate, end diecharged them from all ser-
vicem in his Court, due upon these Jands

A. D0 1480, Thomas Andrews chtained a lease of the
whole estates of the Abbey iu this parish, at e rentsl of
£16 yearly: and cbligation to keep in repair all the
buildimgs, under n penalty of £40, recoverable by die-

* Harleian 4714 f5), 96, b,, and Cart, Ant. B4, D, 11,
+ Cart, Ant. 84, C. 12,
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traint, with remainder in the event of his death to his son
Richard.

XVI. In Treston Capes, County Northampten, Ralph
de Castel, or Caldecourt, and his wile Apgnes granted a
virgate of land, npon condition that they should be pro-
vided by the Abbey * with food and clothing, reof and
cavering,” end all neccesaries during their livis and after-
wards be received to sepulture in the burial place of the
Abbey, and by ether, but undated, charters, they bestowed
oa the same terms & second virgate, a messuage, and pre-
mises at Preston.  And 4.p. 1202, Ralph de Chenduit, in
lien of giving a warrantry upon lande in Charwelton, con-
veyed to the Biddlesden Morks hie righta in the Manor
of Freeton, reserving to himsclf a reat-charge of five
marke annzally. Towards the close of the 13th century,
Richard de Lyons, Lord of Warkworth and Preston, gave
the Monke rights of pasturage in West Woode within hie
estates there, and in 1205 they enclosed and breught ints
cultivation & parcel of land in Preston field, npon agree-
ment made with the Prior of Daventry eectling o fixed
rent-charge upon the land in queetion as composition for
tythe, Next after CHarwelton, where their revenues
amounted te 167, st the time of the diesplution, the Bid-
dlesden Abbey rents in Northamptonshire were highest
in value at Freston, being found by the Commissioners
worth T 1ds. dd,

XVIIL. Thoroborough, County Bucks, The guit-reat
of five marks yearly, due from Biddlesden upon the Pres-
torn Manor, pasaed by inheritence or purchase from Ralph
de Chenduit to Hugh 1'onesterre. He, with his wile"s
Aagrecinett, faundin% in 1266 3 Chauntry at Littlecote, in
the parich of Stewkley, endowed it with this rent-charge,
but by a second charter in the eame year he relessed the
Monks of Biddlesden from thie payment, placed in theix
* hands the sustentation and patronage of his newly founded
Chantry, and confirmed to them two carucates, snd a
meadow called the Holme, in Thorsborough, subject
nevertheless to a sum of forty shillings annually to the
ouns of St. Margaret's Celle of Ivinghoe, and for the
Capellane of Littlecote a peasion of fire marke and three

uarters of rarn, with ane jar of oil, and the efferings and
taragea of the Chantry, s provision which in [4H1 waa
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commuted for a stipead of four pounde yearly, and so
continoed uotll the dissolution.

Prior howevor to the benefaction of Hugh Donesterre,
the Abber possessed lands in this Parish described aa
" one virgate given by Reginald de Fraxino, onc virgate
“given by Alan, son of ilugo, two virpates given by
“Ralph de Fraxzine, one virgate given by iliuc, ﬁlaughtf:r
* of Ralph Marin, four virgates given by John Hastings,
“three and a half virgates confirmed by Alice, daughter
“ af Bobert Hactings, and one virgate given by Thomas
“de Monte,” and by Deed in 1246 the Abbot ceded to
Ralph Morin ane messnage, a parcel of thivty-two and a
halt acree, four acree of meadow, with pasturage for S0
sheep, 20 pigs, 6 cows, 8 axen and 3 hcifers, o Eﬁh-pand,
ond priviledges of hunting and hawking, all in Thornbo-
Teu E, in exehange for lands and eimilar priviledges in
Sncj‘fatﬂu and Harewald. Four yoara after t}:is ezcﬁnu €
Roger Foliot and Floria, his wife, obtained a leasze of tfw
Manor of Preaton (apes for their joint livea, and in com-

cnsation conveyed to the ﬂ.b]‘le}r four messucges in
Thornbarough, three and a half sirgates, ten and a half
acres, and o rent of ten pence, held at a fee-farm rent of
four silver pennies from Reginald de Frazine, who con-
firmed this charter for a fine of five marke and one quarter
of wheat. A mecond confirmation of Faliol’s convevance
was given by John, son of Alan de Walverton, Capital
Lord, and be in 1872, on being freed from a charge agaix
shillings vearly seeured to the Abbey by Adam Harding
upon 3 house at Stony Stratford ond a wirgate at Wal-
verton, gave the Monks & warrantoy againat sll taxes that
might be levied upon their lands at Thernborough by the
‘Warden of Northampton.

XVIIL In the City of Londen, 1273-4, Cerilia, widow
of William the Salter, citizen of London, granted Biddles-
den her houwse in Distaff-lane within the parish of St
Nicheolas, chargeable with the usnal dues to the Lozd of
the Manor. This house, with ome nd{uining it also he-
longing ta Biddlesden, was found A.p. 1201 worth xxv 4,
annuaﬁ ,Eubject to & deduction of xis, vi . a8 tythe, and
both three years later were leased, with twe sheps under
them, t& Thomas, Bector of 8t Wicholas, for the term of
Lis life upen = fine of five and a half marks, and a Fearly
rent of fifteen shillings.* In 1208 the Albey pmrchaeed

# Cort, Ane, 84, E_ 28,
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another house in  Dietafilane for 100 shillings, but
charged with half a mark ycarly to the Abbot of West-
mineter, seven shillings te the heira of William de Bur-
wolle, 184, to the Canoos of 5t. Hreeh, 184, to the heirs
of Ralph Tanot, and one pound of cummin to the heirs of
Dionysia, wife of John de ‘Thesewykes,

XI1X. Ebrington, with Charingwerth, County Glouces-
ter. This Manor held by Eroald de Bosco, founder of Bid-
dlesden, descended by the female line to Roger Corbet,
who 6 Edward TIL. obtained grant of {free warren there,
andl from him to Robert Corbet and his wife Sibella, with
& reversicnary interest in default of heirs to John Lovet,
wha had married Tashel, dauﬁhber of Ernald de Boaco,
the vounger, atid whose only daughter Elizabeth was the
wife of William Lord De Le Zouch.* And when, in the
reign of Edward 11 repeated destruction of the crops by
blight, edded to the periodical occeurrence of a fatal dis-
temper among the cattle, Lad throwo cut of cultivation
large tracts of land in Buckinghamshire,t and 30 impov.
erished Lhe tenants ynder Biddlesden, thet many of them
were unable to pay their rents, whereby the revenues of
the Monustery beeame reduced to such an extent, that the
religious gervices were neglected, and the house almaost
empty, and uwnable to ofer ity customary hospitality to the
wayforer end the poor, Hobert Corbet in the year 1871
richly augmented its endowments with four cottages st
Ebrington, scven virgates in Ebrington-ficld, snd keep for
coe bull and twelve cows, with his whole rights of pas-
turage on Ebrington-common, together with one measuage
gt Charingworth.

Somme years previously Robert Corbet and hia wife had
sold for one hundred marke the advewscn of Ebriopton
Church with ao mere of ground appurtenant, to their
relative 'William Lord I}s La Zouch, and e in 1378,
“ far the affection he bore to the memory of his kinsman
* Frnald de Bosco, buried at Biddlesden,” conveyed Lis

* Foabroeoke's CHoutestersbire, vol. 2. pago 332,

+ The distress in Buckinghamehire from the failure of the srops and
loen of the cattle, ia stteste 'tll‘:{ the Nonarum Inguisiticns of 14 & 15
Fdwd_ III. {ther Heolipioua Housea besides Biddlesdes yuffered from
vhis misfurtune. Lofeld Abbey sought  Hoval Licetwer for the mug-
meniation of ite reveoue in 1310, and the petition of the Trior of Chet-
wode praving for the anhexation af the Peareh Chureh to his 1louse, al-
lediges in sapport of his reguest— quoad erpengas Pricratues pee steililztioe
AgrertA e il InfErienln per TR cReRienET MmN (il Aoumerarr,
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advowson ond land to the Abbey; John Lovet, of whom
it wae held in capite, Robcrt Corbet, James Rex Castel,
joiuing with confirmatory charters, together with Henry
Jl]enyu, bhushand of the sister of Robert Corbet, whoe for s
fine of one¢ hundred marks sanctioned the conveyunce,

The appropristion of this rectory was further secured
by the Archdearon of Gloucester, the Prior and (Manong
of Worcester, the Bishop of Worcester, (who appointad
the ordinstion of a vicar, vesting the patronage in Bid-
dlesden,) the Archbishop of Canterbury, and ultimately by
Pope Urban in 1381, At the dissolution the value of Eb-
rington Rectery wae returned at 16, 6z 84. annually,
reduced however by the payment of BL to the Yicar, 13s. 44,
to the Bishop of Gloncester, a like gum to (he Prior of
Warceater, and 1s. 4d. to the Archdeacon of Gloucester.

The Charter of Lord De Lo Zoueh granting the alvow-
son of Ebrington,and the acre of land anmexed to it, proba-
bly misled Diudaworth, on whose authority Willia appearn
te rely, in attributing the denation of the large landed
estates in Ebrington whirh Biddleeden held to the De La
Zouches, an error atreagthened ne doubt by the existence
of a mutilated tomb of cne of this family at Biddlesden,
when Willis surveped the ruing of thy Abbey on 5th Oot,
1709. And any doubt that mey have arisen from any sup-
posed conlusion of the original grant with its confirmatary
Charters, ia get at Test by the evidence of a document of
Peter De Mas, Abbot 1376-83, in which he enjoins hia
copsent to receive into the benefit of their prayers nodifas
viros, Dominos, Roebertum Corbel palrem, of Robertum
Cordet filium, mililes, fanguam fundalores, ac nobilem
Dominam Beairioem uwrorem predicté Noborfi pairis, ao
tona memorie Sibiflam nuper wsorem  dicti Domimy
Boberid patris, neenon Aliciam auper urorem dicti Doemine
Roberti filil tam depuncing, ac celevos Itberas Roberty et
Boberti tam vives guaem defuncior, gui pauperem domam
Monasteryy de B;'r}isdm wuliiplicuerint de donis suis 8
bonia lemporalibus uberrime ditavering

* Mul 253, 4714, {0l 271
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